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Independent auditor’s report

To
The Members of
J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Ind AS financial statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of J.P. Morgan
Securities India Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet
as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
[ncome), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the Ind AS Financial Statements™)

o

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements

Offices also at
Chennai Kolkata
Bangaluru Coimbatore Hyderabad



K. S. AIYAR & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Director’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Ind AS
financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
the other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements

T

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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9. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company, as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable (*CARQO").

13. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 43 to the Ind AS
financial statements;

The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2024, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts - Refer Notes 9, 40(viii) and 40(xiii) to the Ind AS
financial statements. The Company did not have any derivative contract as at
March 31, 2024.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March
31,2024.

(a)  Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)  The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

5



K. S. AIYAR & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v.  During the year the Company has paid dividend on preference shares in
respect of financial year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024, which is
in compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024.

14. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to
public companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.}]00186W

Al

Rajesh S/Joshi
Partner
Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 38526)
Date: June 07, 2024 UDIN: 24038526BKEKSC1761
( T
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited on the Ind AS financial
statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024)

In our opinion, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the
normal course of audit, which were necessary to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
report that:

i) ()

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3(i)(a) (B) are not applicable.

(b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company have been
physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(¢) The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in
Note 13 on fixed assets to the financial statements. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(i)(d) are not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under
clause (ii)(a) of the CARO 2020 is not applicable.

(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(ii)(b) are not
applicable.

(iii) (a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with
Reserve Bank of India and engaged in the business of financing.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) are not applicable.

(b) The Company has made investments in, companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
7
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As per the information and explanations given to us the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantees provided are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

(¢) The Company has given Loans during the year for which the schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest have been stipulated
and the repayments or receipts are regular.

(d) There is no amount overdue for more than ninety days in respect of
investment and interest.

(e) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with
Reserve Bank of India and engaged in the business of financing.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

(1v) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company registered with
Reserve Bank of India and engaged in the business of financing.
Accordingly, the provisions of section 185 are not applicable to the
company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has complied with the provisions of section 186(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investments made. The other
provisions of section 186 are not applicable to the company.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit during the year from the public
within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the
Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Therefore, the
provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of
cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of
the products of the Company.
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(vil) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect
of statutory dues:

a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Goods and service Tax Act, cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2024, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, there are no dues of in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues outstanding, as on March 31, 2024, on account
of disputes.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were
no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) The Company does not have any borrowings from any lender. For the
purpose of reporting under this clause 5% cumulative convertible
redeemable preference shares have not been considered as borrowings.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(ix)(a) is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) During the year, the Company has not raised any term loans.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(ix)(c) is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes.

(e) On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and according
to the information and explanations given to us during the year, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
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ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable.

(f) On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and according
to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not
raised loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares (except for allotment of equity shares upon conversion of
matured preference shares) or convertible debentures during the year.
Therefore, reporting under clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(¢) According to the information and explanations furnished by the
management, which have been relied upon by us, there were no whistle
blower complaints received during the year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under
clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
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disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or directors of its holding Company or
persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Non-Banking Financial
Institution.

(b) The Company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company and has
a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(¢) The Company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined
in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) The Company does not have any subsidiary and as such there is no
Group. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order
is not applicable for the year.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial
year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the
year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of

realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state

that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
11
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and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
provided to us, there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) in respect of other than ongoing projects.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
provided to us, amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to ongoing projects has
been transferred to special account in compliance with the provisions
of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Companies Act.

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 100186 W

Partner
Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 38526)
Date: June 07, 2024 UDIN: 24038526BKEKSC1761
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited on the Ind AS financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements of J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited (“the Company™) as of
March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31,2024 , based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. J 00186 W

Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 38526)
Date: June 07, 2024 UDIN: 24038526BKEKSC1761
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J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited
Balance Sheet
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

I N As at As at
Parti ote
articufars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 10,296 10,238
Receivables - Other receivables 7 164 103
Loans 8 12,456 58,769
Investments 9 400,157 330,271
Other financial assets 10 2,563 2,571
Non-Financial Assets
Current tax assets (net) 11 5,080 3,900
Deferred tax assets (net) 12 124 452
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 - 1
Other non-financial assets 14 249 81
Total Assets 431,089 406,386
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 15
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 27 27
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 36 36
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 - 15,174
Other financial liabilities 17 1,162 709
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 18 606 606
Provisions 19 421 429
Other non-financial liabilities 20 5 235
EQUITY
Equity share capital 21 45,023 43,299
Other equity 22 383,809 345,871
Total Liabilities and Equity 431,089 406,386

# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

For K.S. Aiyar & Co.
Firm Registration N9qmber : 100186W

Rajesh Joshi
Partner
Membership No. 38526

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 07, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vikfam Ramani

CEO and Whole-time Director
DIN: 9722062

Place: Mumbai

K (SBhegte

Ketki Bhogle
Company Secretary
ACS35033

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 07, 2024

Naquiyah Aga

Whole-time Director

DIN: 09243454
Place: Mumbai



J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations
Interest income 23 28,350 24,418
Net gains on fair value changes 24 7,359 647
Other income 25 - 274
TOTAL INCOME 35,709 25,339
Expenses
Finance costs 26 986 944
(Reversal of impairment) / Impairment on financial assets 27 (290) 411
Employee benefits expenses 28 1,288 1,150
Depreciation 13 1 3
Other expenses 29 1,815 1,634
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,800 4,142
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 31,909 21,197
Tax expenses 31
Current tax (7,899) (4,626)
Adjustment of tax relating to prior year - (48)
Deferred tax (net) (328) (801)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 23,682 15,722
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans 5 (26)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans (1) 6
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 4 (20)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 23,686 15,702
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 34
Basic 5.46 3.63
Diluted 5.46 3.50
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
For K.S. Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number : 100186W
Vikrapd Ramani Naquiyah Aga
Partner CEO and Whole-time Director Whole-time Director
Membership No. 38526 DIN: 9722062 DIN: 09243454
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
K (SR
ol /
i Ketki Bhogle
Company Secretary
ACS35033
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : June 07, 2024 Date : June 07, 2024



J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation

Fair value (gains) / losses on investments
Fair value gains on loans

Preference dividend

Expense booked for share-based payment

(Reversal of provision) / Provision for short term compensated absences

(Reversal of impairment) / Impairment on financial instruments

Net exchange differences

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

Increase in Other receivables

(Increase) / Decrease in Investments

Decrease / (Increase) in Loans

Decrease / (Increase) in Other financial assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Other non-financial assets
Increase in Trade payables

(Decrease) / Increase in Other non-financial liabilities

Increase in Other financial liabilities
Decrease in Provisions

Less : Direct taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities - [A]

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment/intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities - [B]
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid
Settlement of share-based payments

Net cash used in financing activities - [C]

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C]

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 6)

31,909 21,197
1 3
(4,354) 1,770
(153) =
986 944
95 57
(3) 7
(290) 411
5 24
28,196 24,413
(61) (102)
(65,249) 44,791
46,473 (58,776)
8 (1,309)
(168) 219
- # 6
(230) 29
453 114
- i# (18)
9,422 9,367
(9,080) (2,012)
342 7,355
= (1)
5 (1)
(160) (80)
(124) (51)
(284) (131)
58 7,223
10,238 3,015
10,296 10,238

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

For K.S. Aiyar & Co.

Firm;%ation N

Ra oshi
Partner

Membership No. 38526

i

Place: Mumbai

Date : June 07, 2024

ber : 100186W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIN: 9722062

K (SBheyle

Ketki Bhogle
Company Secretary

ACS35033
Place: Mumbai

Date : June 07, 2024

Naquiyah Aga
Whole-time Director
DIN: 09243454
Place: Mumbai
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J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

BACKGROUND

J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in India on July 27, 1998. The Company is a subsidiary
of J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited, USA (JPMIFL), and a part of the J.P. Morgan group. On December 31, 2007, 10% of
the shareholding of the Company had been transferred to J.P. Morgan Overseas Capital Corporation (‘/PMOCC’) by JPMIFL.

The Company is registered as a non-banking finance company (NBFC) vide registration number 13.01149 under Section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934 since January 7, 1999. The Company is primary engaged in wholesale lending in the form
of loans and investments and is also engaged in the activity of rendering advisory services.

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

During the financial year ended March 2010, pursuant to a composite scheme of Reduction of Capital and Amalgamation of the
erstwhile Bear Stearns Financial Services (India) Private Limited (BSFSIPL) with and into the Company, as sanctioned by the Hon'ble
High Court of Bombay on December 18, 2009 and upon the coming into effect of the Scheme on March 10, 2010 being the last
date on which the conditions mentioned in the scheme were fulfilled, all assets, liabilities and balance in reserves of the Transferor
Company (‘BSFSIPL’) then represented by the reduced share capital were recorded by the Transferee Company (‘the Company’)
at their respective book values. BSFSIPL was registered as a NBFC under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 since
January 24, 1998.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)] along
with other relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (as amended from time to time) (‘RBI Master Directions’) and notification for implementation
of Indian Accounting Standards vide circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR.(NBFC).CC.PD.n0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13th,
2020 (‘RBI notification for implementation of IND AS’) issued by RBI. The Company has ascertained a 12 month operating cycle.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
e certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

e defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and

e share-based payments - measured at fair value.

Critical Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses
during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialised.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about
the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgments
The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
e  Estimation of current tax expense and payable — Note 11 and Note 18
e  Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 19 and Note 30 (ii)
e  Estimation of annual incentives payable to employees - Note 17 and 28
e  Estimation of useful life of tangible assets - Note 13
e  Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities — Note 12
e Assessment of carrying value of Loans and related impairment loss provisioning (ECL) - Note 8, Note 36C and Note 37

e Assessment of valuation of investments in certain debt instruments and related impairment loss provisioning (ECL) —
Note 9 and Note 37

e  Segregation of compound financial instrument into debt and equity — Note 16 and Note 22

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including




J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i. Revenue Recognition

1.

Interest income

The effective interest rate method

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate
of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial
instrument. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the
adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet
with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income
in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest income is recognised by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets. Loan origination fees / upfront fees or any other fee integral to EIR are amortised over the life of the
loan to produce an effective rate of interest.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired (as set out in Note 5(vi)) and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the financial assets cures (as outlined in Note 36 part C) and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts
to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised
using the contractual interest rate. Accretion of discount is recognised as interest income over the life of the discounted
instruments.

Fee and commission income
Fees (other than fees that are an integral part of the EIR) are recognised when a binding obligation to receive the fee
has arisen and amortised based on EIR.

Net gains/(losses) on fair value changes

The net gains/(losses) on the financial assets which are measured at fair value through profit and loss are recognised
in statement of profit and loss under line item ‘Net gains/(losses) on fair value changes’.

Fees that are an integral part of the EIR of a financial instrument are treated as an adjustment to the EIR, unless the
financial instrument is measured at fair value, with the change in fair value being recognised in profit or loss. In those
cases, the fees are recognised as revenue or expense when the instrument is initially recognised.




J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ii. Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition & Measurement

Date of Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, investments, debt securities and borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Loans are recognised when they are disbursed. Investments are recognised on settlement date. The
Company recognises debt securities and borrowings when funds are received by the Company.

Initial Measurement

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business
model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value [as described in
Notes 5(vii)]. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price [as described in Notes 37D].

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial instruments based on the business model for managing the assets and the
asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

»  Amortised cost, as explained in Note 5 (iii) (1)

»  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), as explained in Note 5 (iii) (1)

Y

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), as explained in Note 5 (iii) (1)

iii. Financial assets and liabilities

1.

The Company measures its financial instruments at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

»  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are in the hold-to-collect and sell business model are eligible to be measured at FVOCI, provided
that the contractual cash flows also meet the solely payment of principal and interest criteria (SPPI).

Financial assets that are held in neither of the above two business models are required to be measured at FVTPL.

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages its financial instruments to
achieve its business objective. The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's
original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that
business model but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets
going forward.

The SPPI test
As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial instruments to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time
value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers relevant
factors such as the period for which the interest rate is set.




J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual
cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be
measured at FVTPL.

4. Financial assets or financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
The Company measures financial assets as FVTPL when they have been purchased or subscribed for short-term profit
making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for
which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. FVTPL assets and liabilities are recorded and
measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised as net gains/ (losses) on fair value
changes. The fair value of financial assets is determined as mentioned below:

a. Investments: The company is valuing its investments based on quotes available in the active market i.e. price
computed based on FIMMDA guidelines and trader marked rates / quotes available from the third party
intermediaries (brokers).

b. Loans: The fair value of the loan is derived by discounting of future interest flows and the repayment of
notional.

Any appreciation or depreciation is recognised in “net gains/(losses) on fair value changes” under the statement of
profit and loss.

5. Debt Securities and Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
After initial measurement at fair value, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. A compound financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is
separated at the issue date.

The Company had issued financial instruments with equity conversion rights and call options. When establishing the
accounting treatment for these, the Company has first established whether the instrument is a compound instrument
and classified such instrument separately as liability and equity in accordance with Ind AS 32.

Classification of the liability and equity components of a convertible instrument is not revised as a result of a change in
the likelihood that a conversion option will be exercised, even when exercising the option may appear to have become
economically advantageous to some holders. When allocating the initial carrying amount of a compound financial
instrument to the equity and liability components, the equity component is assigned as the residual amount after
deducting from the entire fair value of the instrument, the amount separately determined for the liability component.

The value of any derivative features (such as a call options) embedded in the compound financial instrument, other
than the equity component (such as an equity conversion option), is included in the liability component. Once the
Company has determined the split between equity and liability, it further evaluates whether the liability component
has embedded derivatives that must be separately accounted for.

6. Undrawn Loan Commitments
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to provide a loan with pre-
specified terms to the customer. These are in the scope of the expected credit loss (ECL) requirements.
The nominal contractual value of undrawn loan commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market
terms, are not recorded in the balance sheet while ECL on the same is recorded under provisions in balance sheet. The
nominal values of these instruments together with the corresponding ECL are disclosed in accompanying notes, if any.

iv. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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V. Derecognition of financial assets & financial liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

vi. Impairment of financial assets
a. Overview of the ECL principles
The Company estimates credit impairment through an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”). ECLs are

recognised for financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and for specified lending-related commitments
such as undrawn loan commitments.

The measurement of ECL also reflects how the Company manages the credit risk in the financial instruments such as
Traditional Credit Products (“TCP”), non-traditional credit products (“Non-TCP”) and Debt securities measured at
amortised cost. TCP are wholesale loans and lending-related commitments (including undrawn loan commitments)
from extensions of credit to borrowers, Non-TCP are all other financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt
securities includes investment in Pass through certificates (PTCs).

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit
loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance
is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL) as outlined below. The Company’s policies for determining if
there has been a significant increase in credit risk are set out in Note 36 part C. The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs
that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date.

The Company uses statistical models to estimate ECLs for TCP on a collective basis; however ECL for credit-impaired
instruments is estimated on an individual borrower basis. When determining how exposures should be grouped for
collective assessment, the Company considers many factors including, but not limited to, internal credit risk ratings,
tenor, borrower and industry.

The calculation of the ECL on Debt securities measured at amortised cost depends on the staging of each financial
instrument.

ECLs are measured using a three stage model based on changes in credit quality of the financial instrument since it was
initially recognised ("initial recognition"): (For details refer Note 36 part C)

e Stage 1- performing financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs.

e  Stage 2 - performing financial instruments that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk. When a loan has
shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group records an allowance for the LTECLs.

e  Stage 3 - non-performing financial instruments that have been determined to be credit-impaired.

e POCI Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently
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recognised based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognised or released to the extent that there is a subsequent
change in the expected credit losses.

b. Calculation of ECL
The Company calculates ECLs using the forward looking Probability of Default (“PD”), Loss Given Default (“LGD”), and
Exposure at Default (“EAD”) values to produce the scenario credit losses (“SCL”). The final ECL is a probability-weighted
combination of SCLs discounted using the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

e PD: The PD model estimates the probability of downgrade and default each quarter. The 12-month and lifetime PDs
represent the probability of default occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument
respectively. The model considers input variables that are region, industry and borrower segment specific and considers
scenario - and borrower-specific information. PDs are determined at a facility-level based on risk ratings and other
characteristics.

. EAD: The EAD model predicts gross exposure upon a borrower’s default as a percentage of the total commitment at
the reporting date under a given macroeconomic environment. The model estimates the probability of a change in the
utilisation, and direction and magnitude of the change. Input variables include exposure and utilization at the reporting
date, facility purpose, industry and macro-economic variables (“MEVs”).

. LGD: The LGD model estimates expected losses under given macroeconomic environments on the EAD given the event
of default and, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral and the time value of
money.

The 12-month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD, EAD and LGD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the
lifetime PD instead.

c. Forward-looking information
The PD, LGD and EAD models are designed to forecast the credit quality and performance of a TCP portfolio based on
industry, rating and size of obligors, among other attributes of the portfolio. PD, LGD and EAD models are calibrated
based on historical MEVs and use forecasted macroeconomic scenarios for projecting PD, LGD and EAD variables. ECL
estimates are derived from the Company’s historical experience and future forecasted economic conditions.

d. Measurement of Non-TCP
The Company’s approach to measuring ECLs for Non-TCP portfolios depends on the type of asset. The Company has
determined that ECLs on all Non-TCP portfolios are without significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) i.e. Stage 1 and
immaterial due to the credit quality of the borrower, short-term nature of the instrument and the existence of
collateral. (For details refer Note 36 part C)

vii. Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques, as summarised below:




J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

* Level 1 financial instruments: quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;
* Level 2 financial instruments: directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
¢ Level 3 financial instruments: inputs which are not based on observable market data.

viii. Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks and other
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

iX. Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciation

a.
b.

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided, from the month in which the asset is capitalised, on the straight-line method over the useful life
of the asset as estimated by the Management and in accordance with Schedule Il to the 2013 Act.

Asset Type Estimated useful life
Computers 3 years
Office Equipment 5 years

No depreciation is provided for the month in which the asset is sold or disposed. Items individually costing below Indian
Rupee equivalent of USD 1,000 are expensed off to Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are a part of major capital
outlay. Property, Plant and Equipment purchased from group entities are depreciated over the remaining estimated useful
life of the assets as indicated above. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in statement of profit and loss within other income/expenses.

X. Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are

unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Xi. Impairment of Non-financial assets

Non-financials assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, these assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash

inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

xii. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions for legal claims, are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation or a present obligation and it is
probable that a cash outflow will not be required to settle the obligation.

xiii. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker i.e. Board of Directors which assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and make strategic decisions.

([=
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Xiv. Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (Rs.), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
statement of profit or loss. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on
a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary assets that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction.

XV. Finance Costs

Interest expenses are recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method. The calculation includes
significant fees and transaction costs that are integral to the effective interest rate, as well as premiums or discounts. Dividend
cost and tax related to the same on liability component of compound financial instrument has been considered as part of finance
cost.

xvi. Employee benefits
(i) Long-term obligations
a. Provident fund

The Company has a defined contribution plan for post-employment benefits in the form of provident fund. The Company
contributes to a government administered provident fund on behalf of its employees. The Company’s contributions to the
above plan are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit plan for post-employment benefits in the form of gratuity. The Company has formed a
Gratuity Trust and taken group gratuity policies with insurance companies which are funded. The gratuity fund is recognised
by the Income Tax Authorities and is administered through trustees. Liability with regards to the gratuity plan is determined
by actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The fair value of assets available
with the insurance companies is compared with the gratuity liability as per an independent actuarial valuation at the year
end and shortfall, if any, is provided in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.

(ii) Short-term obligation
a. Short term compensated absences

Unutilised leave balance that accrues to employees as at the year end is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an
undiscounted basis.

b. Special awards and incentive compensation

Special awards and incentive compensation payable to employees as per the Company's policy within twelve months from
the date of balance sheet is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an undiscounted basis.

(iii) Share based Payments
The Company does not provide any equity-based compensation to its employees. However, the ultimate holding company,
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. ("the grantor") grants long-term stock-based awards to certain employees under its Long-Term
Incentive ("LTI") Plan.

Under the LTI Plans, Restricted stock units (“RSUs”) are awarded at no cost to the recipient upon their grant to the employees
of the Company. Generally, RSUs are granted annually and vest at a rate of 50% after two years and 50% after three years
and are converted into shares of common stock as of the vesting date. In addition, RSUs typically include full-career eligibility
provisions, which allow employees to continue to vest upon voluntary termination, subject to post-employment and other—

IND, N\
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restrictions based on age or service-related requirements. All RSUs awards are subject to forfeiture until vested and contain
claw back provisions that may result in cancellation under certain specified circumstances. RSUs entitle the recipient to
receive cash payments equivalent to any dividends paid on the underlying common stock during the period the RSUs are
outstanding and, as such, are considered participating securities. RSUs provide an employee with a share of JPMorgan Chase
common stock upon vesting.

RSUs issued by the ultimate holding Company are accounted for as equity settled. Further the Company settles the said
expense in cash with the group company.

The Company recognises the expenses over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied, as determined on the grant date, based on the fair value of the RSUs. The Company separately
recognises compensation expense for each tranche of each award as if it were a separate award with its own vesting date
with a debit to Employee compensation expense and a credit to employee benefits reserve in other equity. Annually, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of share units that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in statement of profit and loss, with
a corresponding adjustment to employee benefit reserve in other equity.

xvii. Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33, Earnings per Share. Basic earnings per
share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or
other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using
the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at the year end

Xviii. Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

Current income tax is computed in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 and applicable laws and rules thereunder.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously and are disclosed on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In such case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Xix. Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new
_standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balances with banks in current accounts 10,296 10,238
10,296 10,238

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting year and previous year

7 RECEIVABLES - OTHER RECEIVABLES As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Other receivables (considered good - unsecured) 164 103

164 103

Receivables from related party Rs. 164 as at March 31, 2024 (Rs.103 as at March 31, 2023)

8 LOANS As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Measured at amortised cost

Triparty Repo System (TREPs) - 58,776
Measured at fair value through profit or loss

Term Loan 12,259 -
Interest accrued but not due 44 -
Total (A) - Gross 12,303 58,776
Impairment loss allowance on TREPs - (7)
Fair valuation gains on term loan 153 -
Total (A) - Net 12,456 58,769
Secured by standby letter of credit, land and other tangible assets 12,259 -
Secured by government securities - 58,776
Interest accrued but not due 44 -
Total (B) - Gross 12,303 58,776
Impairment loss allowance on TREPs - (7)
Fair valuation gains on term loan 153 “
Total (B) - Net 12,456 58,769

All loans have been granted in India and other than to public sector enterprises
The company did not grant any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and to related parties during the reporting year and previous year

9  INVESTMENTS As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Debt securities
Measured at amortised cost

Pass through certificates 5,468 19,757
Interest accrued but not due - 18 52
Unamortised fees (5) (24)

5,481 19,785

Measured at fair value through profit or loss

Debentures and bonds* 318,636 156,351
Government securities including treasury bills - 72,623
Certificate of deposits 65,372 83,287
Interest accrued but not due (including overdue interest)* 10,792 2,986

394,800 315,247
Impairment loss allowance on pass through certificates (121) (404)
Fair valuation gains / (losses) on debentures and bonds* 8 (4,380)
Fair valuation gains on government securities including treasury bills s 28
Fair valuation losses on certificate of deposits (11) (5)
Total net investments 400,157 330,271

All the investments are made in India
*Refer note 40 (xxvii)




J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 v ! S The Company doesn't have any intangible assets under development in current year and in previous year.

10

11

12

13

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Margin money with the Clearing Corporation of India Limited
Interest accrued but not due on margin money

CURRENT TAX ASSETS (net)

Advance tax (including fringe benefit tax)

(net of provision for taxation Rs. 48,463 as at March 31, 2024; Rs.40,563 as

at March 31, 2023)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (net)

Employee benefits payable

Unamortised fees

Depreciation

Provision for impairment loss allowance (net)

Equity component of compound financial instrument

Fair value gains on unquoted investments in debentures & bonds (net)

Allowance under Section 94B of The Income Tax Act, 1961

Employee benefits payable

Unamortised fees

Depreciation

Provision for impairment loss allowance (net)

Equity component of compound financial instrument

Fair value gains on unquoted investments in debentures & bonds (net)

Allowance under Section 94B of The Income Tax Act, 1961

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance as at March 31, 2022
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2024
Net carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2,561 2,561

2 10

2,563 2,571

As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

5,080 3,900
5,080 3,900
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

172 174

1 6

(2) (2)

31 103

. (228)

(78) (87)

- 486

124 452

Credit/(Charge) in
As at the statement of As at
March 31, 2023 profit and loss March 31, 2024
174 (2) 172
6 (5) 1
(2) - (2)
103 (72) 31
(228) 228 -
(87) 9 (78)
486 (486) -
452 (328) 124
Computers Total

6 6

1 1

7 7

7 7

3 3

3

6 6

1 1

7 7

i 1
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_# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company
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14

15

16

N

As at As at
OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prepaid expenses 3 2
Input credit 246 79
Other non-financial assets - -
249 81
TRADE PAYABLES As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) (Refer Note : 42) 27 27
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 36 36
63 63
Trade Payables as on March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Total
Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i)MSME 27 - - - - 27
(ii)Others 26 10 - - - 36
Total 53 10 - - - 63
Trade Payables as on March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Total
Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i))MSME 27 - - - - 27
(ii)Others 35 - - - 36
Total 62 - - - 63
BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DEBT SECURITIES) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured (measured at amortised cost)

Liability component of compound financial instruments

5% cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each
(Nil as at March 31, 2024; 16,000,000 as at March 31, 2023)

15,174

15,174

The contractual dividend rate of 5% was considered to be the debt component of the instrument and accordingly recorded in this note. The
determined EIR of thé instrument was higher than the contractual dividend rate of the instrument and hence the difference between the
contractual dividend rate and determined EIR is considered to be an equity component of the instrument which is recorded as “equity

component of compound financial instrument” in Statement of changes in equity (Refer note 22).

16,000,000, 5% cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs 10 each issued at a premium of Rs 90 per share on March 23,
2004 were converted into 17,241,379 equity shares of Rs. 10 each with the approval of the Board of Directors effective March 21, 2024. The

new equity shares were issued at a premium of Rs. 82.80 per share.

All borrowings (other than debt securities) have been issued in India.
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17

18

19

20

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Employee benefits payables

Employee related statutory dues including provident fund

Unspent balance in Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) account for ongoing projects
Advance from / Payable to inter company

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (net)

Provision for income tax (including fringe benefit tax)

(net of advance tax Rs. 20,276 as at March 31, 2024; Rs. 20,276 as at March 31, 2023)
Interest tax

(net of taxes paid Rs.86 as at March 31, 2024; Rs.86 as at March 31, 2023)

PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absences
- Gratuity [Refer note 30 (ii)]
Provision for merger costs (including penalty)*

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
115 96
8 9
562 401
477 203
1,162 709
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
603 603
3 3
606 606
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

14 17
3 8
404 404
421 429

* The adjudication of stamp duty payable on the order of the Honorable Bombay High Court sanctioning the scheme of amalgamation of

BSFSIPL with and into the Company is awaited. Accordingly, provision for the likely stamp duty payable has been retained.

OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Principal/ Interest received but not due on investments
Statutory dues including tax deducted at source

As at

March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2023

210
25

235
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21 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised
983,500,000 (983,500,000 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 98,350 98,350
16,500,000 (16,500,000 as at March 31, 2023) 5% cumulative
convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each 1,650 1,650
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
450,230,666 (432,989,287 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 45,023 43,299
45,023 43,299
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity Shares As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 432,989,287 43,299 432,989,287 43,299
Issued during the year 17,241,379 1,724 - -
As at the end of the year 450,230,666 45,023 432,989,287 43,299
(b) Details of shares held by holding and subsidiary of holding company at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at March 31, 2024
% change during

As at March 31, 2023

% change during

Number of shares % Holding the year Number of shares % Holding the year
Equity Shares
J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited 434,854,616 96.58% 0.13% 417,613,237 96.45% 0.00%
J.P. Morgan Overseas Capital Corporation * 15,376,050 3.42% -0.13% 15,376,050 3.55% 0.00%

* includes 10 equity shares held as the nominee of J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having nominal value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the

Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to

receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Preference Shares

16,000,000, 5% cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs 10 each issued at a premium of Rs 90 per share on March 23, 2004 were converted into 17,241,379
equity shares of Rs. 10 each with the approval of the Board of Directors effective March 21, 2024. The new equity shares were issued at a premium of Rs. 82.80 per share.

22 OTHER EQUITY *

Reserves and surplus

General Reserve

Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
Impairment Reserve on Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Securities Premium Reserve

Capital Contribution towards Employee benefits (Refer note 39)
Other Comprehensive Income

Retained Earnings

Total

Equity component of compound financial instruments
Total

* Refer statement of changes in equity

(A)
(B)

(A+B)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

236 236
34,783 30,047
644 644
215,824 201,548
565 589

4 (20)
121,051 102,125
373,107 335,169
10,702 10,702
383,809 345,871
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23

24

25

26

27

28

29

INTEREST INCOME

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Term Loans

Triparty Repo System (TREPs)

Margin money with the Clearing Corporation of India Limited
Interest income on investments

On financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Interest income on investments
Term Loans

NET GAINS / (LOSSES) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

Fair value changes on investments measures at FVTPL

Profit on sale of investments
Structuring and upfront fees
Realised gains/(losses)

Unrealised gains/(losses)

Fair value changes on loan measures at FVTPL
Unrealised gains

OTHER INCOME

Interest on income tax refund

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on liability component of compound financial instrument

(REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT) / IMPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At amortised cost
Loans
Investments

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and incentives

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 30 (i)
Service cost of gratuity benefits (Refer note 30 (ii))
Share-based payments (Refer note 39)

Staff welfare expenses

Less: Recovery from group entities for employees oversight

OTHER EXPENSES

Brokerage, stamp duty and transaction charges
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (Refer note 35)
Electricity

Insurance

Legal and professional services (Refer note 29.1)
Postage, telephone and communication

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Travel and conveyance

Miscellaneous

# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- 2,213

2,533 7,707

11 33

961 1,448

24,606 13,017

239 =

28,350

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

24,418

Year Ended
March 31, 2023

2,852 2,417

- 4,093

2,852 (1,676)

4,354 (1,770)

153 -

7,359 647

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
= 274

- 274

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
986 944

986 944

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7) 7

(283) 404

(290) 411

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,437 1,347

46 36

8 2

95 57

40 22
(338) (314)

1,288 1,150

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
178 82

471 515

15 10

733 584

35 59

2 4

184 203

98 67

75 68

9 13

15 29

1,815 1,634
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29.1 Payment to Auditors Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Legal and professional services includes auditors' remuneration as follows:
- Statutory audit : 22 22
- Tax audit 2 2
- Other services 1
- Out of pocket expenses - # -
25 25

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

i Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on contributions under defined contribution scheme

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provident fund 46 36
i Disclosures for funded gratuity based on actuarial report as of March 31, 2024
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Change in defined benefit obligations during the year
Opening defined benefit obligation 86 64
Current service cost 8 4
Interest cost 6 4
Actuarial (gains)/losses (8) 23
Past service cost - plan amendments 3 (1)
Acquisitions cost 13 32
Benefits paid (37) (40)
Closing defined benefit obligation (DBO) 71 86
Il Change in fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 78 84
Interest income on plan assets 6 5
Return on plan assets lesser than discount rate - # (3)
Contributions by employer 8 -
Acquisitions adjustment 13 32
Benefits paid (37) (40)
Closing fair value of plan assets 68 78
Il Net liability / (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of obligation as at the year end 71 86
Fair value of plan assets as at the year end (68) (78)
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 3 8
IV Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 8 3
Net interest on net defined benefit asset - # (1)
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 8 2
V  Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to DBO experience (8) 23
Actuarial losses / (gains) due to DBO assumption changes 3 (1)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising during the year (5) 22
Return on plan assets lesser than discount rate - # 4
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognized in OCI (5) 26
Vi Asset information
Insurer managed funds 87.40% 99.20%
Cash 12.60% 0.80%
vil Principal actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
A ) Discount Rate 7.20% 7.20%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Discount Rate (2) (3)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Discount Rate 2 3
B ) Salary Escalation Rate
Upto 30 years 10.00% 7.00%
for 30 -39 years 9.00% 7.00%
for 40-45 years 8.00% 7.00%
for above 45 years 7.00% 7.00%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Salary escalation Rate 1 1
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Salary escalation Rate (1) (1)
C ) Withdrawal Rate
Service - 0-4 35.00% 29.00%
Service - 5 & above 15.00% 11.00%
Effect on DBO due to 5% increase in Withdrawal Rate 1 5
Effect on DBO due to 5% decrease in Withdrawal Rate (2) (10)
VIl Expected benefit payments for the year ending
Expected benefits for year 1 12 12
Expected benefits for year 2 11 12
Expected benefits for year 3 12 12
Expected benefits for year 4 12 13
Expected benefits for year 5 11 13 y =
Expected benefits for 5 year and above 46 58 758

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

MUMBALI |

# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
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31 RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT MULTIPLIED BY INDIA'S TAX RATE:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before income tax expense 31,909 21,197
Tax rate (%) 25.168% 25.168%
Tax at the Indian Tax Rate 8,031 5,335
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income
Effect of tax on disallowed expenses 196 92
Adjustment of tax relating to prior year - 48
8,227 5,475

32 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company is engaged primarily in wholesale lending in the form of loans and investments which in the context of Ind AS 108 constitutes single reporting business
segment.
33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
i Related parties (during the current year and previous year) as required under Ind AS 24:

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party
Ultimate holding company J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.
Holding companies JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association and its branches

J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited
J.P Morgan Chase Holdings LLC

Fellow Subsidiaries with whom the J.P. Morgan India Private Limited
Company has had transactions during the  J.P. Morgan Services India Private Limited
current year and previous year J.P. Morgan Securities Asia Private Limited

J.P. Morgan Advisors India Private Limited
Key management personnel Ms. Rinku Ahuja (Whole-time Director resigned w.e.f June 22, 2022)
Mrs. Naquiyah Aga (Whole-time Director)
Mr. Harsh Bansal (Whole-time Director)
Mr. Vikram Ramani (Whole-time Director appointed w.e.f September 19, 2022)
Mr. Nikhil Agarwal (Whole- time Director appointed w.e.f. June 27, 2023 and resigned w.e.f. November 3, 2023)
Ms. Ketki Bhogle (Company Secretary)

Post Employment Benefit Trust J.P. Morgan Securities India Private Limited Employees Comprehensive Gratuity Scheme

i The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Year Ended March 31, 2024

Post Employment Key Management
Nature of transactions Benefit Trust Personnel* Holding Companies | Fellow Subsidiaries

Transactions during the year

Fee paid - -

Legal and professional services 586 | (a) 52 | (c)
Recovery from group entities for employees oversight 103 | (a) 235 | (h)
Expense reimbursement 212 | (i)
Other receipts 4 (a) #1] (c)
Other payments #| (a)

Interest on liability component of compound financial instruments 986 | (f)

Purchase of investments 90,727 | (e)
Sale of investments 354,431 | (e)
Conversion of preference shares into equity shares 16,000 | (f)

Short term employee benefits 662

Post employment benefits 19

Share-based payments

Restricted stock units (issued under group share-based payments schemes) 95 | (g)

Adjustment to Gratuity Asset / Liability (5)

Balances at the year end

Payable to inter company 286 | (a) 191 | (d)
Receivables - Other receivables 93 | (a) 71| (b)
Cash and cash equivalents 5,168 | (a)

Liability component of compound financial instruments - 2

Equity component of compound financial instruments 10,702 | (f)

Capital contribution towards employee benefits 565 | (g)

Gratuity Trust-Defined benefit - Liability 3

# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company
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Year Ended March 31, 2023

Post Employment Key .
Management Holding Fellow
. benefit trust b L
Nature of transactions Personnel* Companies Subsidiaries
Transactions during the year
Fee paid 45 | (a)
Legal and professional services 343 | (a) 57 | (c)
Recovery from group entities for employee oversight 136 | (a) 178 | (h)
Expense reimbursement 139 | (i)
Other receipts 67 | (a) 2| (c)
Other payments #1 (a)
Interest on liability component of compound financial instruments 944 | (f)
Purchase of investments 131,311 | (a)
Sale of investments 130,849 | (a)
Conversion of preference shares into equity shares - -
Short term employee benefits 508
Post employment benefits 15
Share-based payments
Restricted stock units (issued under group share-based payments schemes) 57 | (g)
Adjustment to Gratuity Asset / Liability 28
Balances at the year end
Payable to inter company 119 | (a) 84 | (d)
Receivables - Other receivables 76 | (a) 27 | (b)
Cash and cash equivalents 6,570 | (a)
Liability component of compound financial instrument 15,174 | (f)
Equity component of compound financial instruments 10,702 | (f)
Capital Contribution towards employee benefits 589 | (g)
Gratuity Trust-Defined benefit - Liability 8

Notes:

a JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association and its branches
J.P. Morgan India Private Limited
J.P. Morgan Services India Private Limited

an oT

Limited and Rs. Nil (previous year Rs.2) payable to J.P Morgan Advisors India Private Limited

J.P. Morgan Securities Asia Private Limited
J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited
J P Morgan Chase Holdings LLC

D oa -~

(previous year Rs.1) from J.P Morgan Advisors India Private Limited

i Includes Rs. 205 (previous year Rs. 139 ) to J.P. Morgan India Private Limited, Rs. 7 (previous year Nil) to J.P. Morgan Services India Private Limited.

* There are no transactions with the relatives of the Key management personnel in current year and previous year.

Includes Rs. 14 (previous year Rs. 41) payable to J.P. Morgan India Private Limited, Rs.177 (previous year Rs.41) payable to J.P. Morgan Services India Private

Includes Rs. 78 (previous year Rs.53 ) from J.P. Morgan India Private Limited, Rs. 157(previous year Rs.124) from J.P. Morgan Services India Private Limited and Nil

The policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the Company’s website at https://www.jpmorgan.com/content/dam/jpm/global/disclosures/us/related-party.pdf

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
a) Net Profit for the year 23,682 15,722
b) Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders 23,682 15,722
Number of shares (in lakhs)
c) Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each for computation of basic earnings per share 4,335 4,330
d) Diluting effect of compound financial instrument of Rs. 10 each - 160
e) Weighted average number of shares for computation of diluted earnings per share 4,335 4,490
Earnings per share (Basic) — In Rupees (b/c) 5.46 3.63
Earnings per share (Diluted) — In Rupees (b/e) 5.46 3.50

16,000,000, 5% cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs 10 each issued at a premium of Rs 90 per share on March 23, 2004 were converted into
17,241,379 equity shares of Rs. 10 each with the approval of the Board of Directors effective March 21, 2024. The new equity shares were issued at a premium of Rs.

82.80 per share.

# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company
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35 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

- Year ended “Year ended |
Particulac March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Contribution to ongoing projects 23 63
Accrual towards unspent obligations in relation to:

Ongoing projects 448 452
Total 471 515
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 465 513
Amount spent during the year on

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 471 515

Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act for FY

2023-24:

Balance as at

April 1, 2023

Amount spent during the year Balance as at March 31, 2024

Amount Fi te
Inseparata C3R From the ram Separa . In separate CSR unspent
Project With the compan unspent account Ml ted company’s bank RARDIGERHY | Wittt account with the
AL with the during the year pany account with |company .
account company

company the company
Enabling growth of women microbusinesses in Pune and Mumbai = - 290 20 - - 270
Skilling for careers in e mobility = - 181 3 g 5 178
Total - - 471 23 - - 448
Balance in unspent CSR account of FY 2022-23 spent during FY 2023-24:

Balance as at April 1, 2023 Amount spent during the year Balance as at March 31, 2024
From
In separate CSR Amount From the om separate ] In separate CSR unspent
< . unspent account allocated % CSR unspent | With the .

Project With the company| A . company’s bank . account with the

with the during the year account with |company

account company*

company the company

Entrepreneurial skills training for young women in Mumbai and
251 - 111
Bengaluru 140
Bulandi Livelihood Programme 112 = 73 39
Youth Employability Program 89 - 89 &
Total - 452 - - 273 - 179
Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act for FY 2022-23:
Balance as at April 1, 2022 Amount spent during the year Balance as at March 31, 2023

Fi
In separate CSR Amount From the rom separate ) In separate CSR unspent
" E unspent account allocated 5 CSR unspent | With the -
Project With the company A A company’s bank N account with the
with the during the year account with |company
account company
company the company
Entrepreneurial skills training for young women in Mumbai and
Bengaluru* - - 302 51 = - 251
Bulandi Livelihood Programme - - 118 6 B = 112
Youth Employability Program - - 95 6 - - 89
Total - - 515 63 - - 452

* Includes Rs. 448 and Rs. 65 (previous year Rs. 401 and Rs. 51) deposited by the Company and NGOs respectively to CSR unsp

Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act for

FY 2023-24:

ent account before April 30, 2024 (previous year before April 30, 2023).

Balance excess

Amount

Amount spent/
transferred to

Excess CSR
Balance excess spent

§ i spent carried
Particulars spentt reql:l;ed.to l:: CSR unspent asat fof ard to next
Wi X
.as a spentiduring;the account during March 31, 2024 .
April 1, 2023 year financial year
the year
Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act = 465 471 6 -
Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act for FY 2022-23:
Balance excess Amount Amount spent/ Excess CSR
) Balance excess spent )
spent required to be | transferred to 355t spent carried
.as at spent during the | CSR unsper_\t March 31, 2023 forwan—! to next
April 1, 2022 year account during financial year
Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act - 513 515 2 -

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects - Nil (previous year Nil)
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an inherent part of the Company's business activities. The Company's risk management framework and governance
structure are intended to provide comprehensive controls and an ongoing management of major risks inherent in its business
activities.

The Board of Directors (BOD) have formed the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) who
together have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. RMC
and ALCO are responsible for developing the Company's risk management policies which are established to identify and analyse
the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to those limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in RBI regulations, the Company's activities and the
market conditions.

The Company's risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those of the group company. The Company employs
a holistic approach to risk management to ensure the broad spectrum of risk types are considered in managing its business
activities. It is also intended to create a culture of risk transparency and awareness and personal responsibility throughout the
Company where collaboration, discussion, escalation and sharing of information is encouraged. The Company's ability to properly
identify, measure, monitor/control and report risk is critical to its soundness and profitability. The Company has a documentation
on its risk management policies and procedures, risk measurement and reporting systems.

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, key risks being liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk.

A. MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses. A material and sustained shortfall in the Company’s cash flow could undermine its credit rating and impair
shareholder confidence.

ALCO has the overall responsibility for oversight and strategic management of liquidity risks. ALCO recognizes that, being a NBFC,
the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk must be monitored and controlled and the funding mix on the balance sheet is as stable
and diverse as possible. ALCO will rely mainly on the nature and maturity of the assets from time to time to ensure that the
funding mix is appropriate and stable as well as the norms laid down by the RBI and Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy are
strictly adhered to.

ALCO ensures that the Company complies with the negative mismatch norms laid down by RBI in the first liquidity bucket (0-7
days) and the cumulative gap up to one year period. Additionally, ALCO has established internal limits to monitor the cumulative
negative mismatch across all other time buckets. These limits are monitored on a monthly basis and reviewed periodically by the
ALCO from time to time to be in line with the RBI guidelines and the business requirements.

Any breaches or exceptions to the norms and guidelines laid down by the ALM policy or RBI from time to time, along with their
explanations are noted/approved by the ALCO and placed before the BOD of the Company.

B. MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to an adverse change in the market value of financial instruments caused by a change in market
parameters. The Board of Directors (BoD) of the company has delegated the responsibility of governing the market risk
management structure to the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”). The RMC delegates responsibility to Market Risk (MR),
who are responsible for establishing an appropriate market risk management framework to measure, monitor and control
market risk. The RMC is responsible for application of these processes to the company. The company utilizes measures, which
include but are not limited to, Value at Risk (VaR) and Non-statistical measures. The company has also employed market risk
limits as the primary control. The company’s Line of Business (LOBs) should not exceed their limits unless authorized by a
Temporary Limit Approval (TLA) or a limit change. Notifications of valid limit breaches are sent to signatories to limits and the
RMC. Aged or significant valid / under investigation (Ul) limit breaches are escalated to the Legal entity Market Risk Head, APAC
Risk Committee , Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Risk Officer.
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C.

MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the default of a customer, client or counterparty. The company manages credit risk by
setting credit limits in accordance with RBI regulations and these limits are defined in the Credit Policy of the Company.

Credit risk is managed by the Credit Risk Management function. The Credit and Investment Committee of the Company reviews
and approves proposals to book credit exposure in the Company

Expected credit loss measurement
Approach to measuring expected credit losses

The Company estimates credit impairment through an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”). ECLs are recognised for
financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value option through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and for
specified lending-related commitments such as loan commitments. The measurement of ECLs reflects:

(a) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes

(b) The time value of money; and

(c) Reasonable and supportable information about past events, current economic conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

The measurement of ECL also reflects how the Company manages the financial instruments it uses for credit risk purposes such
as Traditional Credit Products (“TCP”), non-traditional credit products (“Non-TCP”) and Debt securities measured at amortised
cost. TCP are wholesale loans and lending-related commitments from extensions of credit to borrowers, Non-TCP are all other
debt financial assets measured at amortised cost which include but are not limited to Triparty Repo System(TREPs), fee
receivables and inter-company receivables and debt securities includes investment in Pass through certificates (PTCs).

The following table sets out the balances of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at amortised cost by the respective
TCP, Non-TCP and Debt Securities categories.

Balance sheet categories As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
D
TCP Non-TCP DEDE TCP | Non-TCP Ebe
Securities Securities
Cash and Cash Equivalents . 10,296 _ B 10,238 _
Loans - . = - 58,769 s
Receivables - Other receivables B 164 _ _ 103 _
Other financial assets
- 2,563 - - 2,571 -
Investments 5,360
- - - 19,381

The Company uses statistical models to estimate ECLs for TCP on a collective basis; however ECL for credit-impaired instruments
is estimated on an individual borrower basis. When determining how exposures should be grouped for collective assessment,
the Company considers many factors including, but not limited to, internal credit risk ratings, tenor, borrower geography and
industry.

The calculation of the ECL on Debt securities measured at amortised cost depends on the staging of each financial instrument.
Impact of staging on measuring expected credit losses

ECLs are measured using a three stage model based on changes in credit quality of the financial instrument since it was initially
recognised ("initial recognition"):

e Stage 1 - performing financial assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition;
* Stage 2 - performing financial assets that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk; and
* Stage 3 - non-performing financial assets that have been determined to be credit-impaired.
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Default and credit-impairment (Stage 3)

Financial assets are included in Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For Stage 3
instruments, ECL is calculated considering the probability of default over the remaining life of each instrument (“Lifetime ECL”)
on an individual asset basis and interest revenue is calculated on the net carrying amount (that is, net of the allowance for credit
losses). All financial assets, regardless of their category as TCP, Non-TCP or debt securities, are considered to be credit-impaired
and included in Stage 3 when events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred.

Afinancial asset is considered to no longer be in default (i.e., the default has been cured) when the borrower has made payments
for a minimum of twelve months and there is other objective evidence of credit improvement.

Significant increase in credit risk (Stage 2)

Financial assets that have experienced a SICR since initial recognition, for which there is no objective evidence of impairment,
are included in Stage 2. For Stage 2 instruments, ECL is calculated considering the probability of default over the remaining life
of the instrument on a collective basis and interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset (that is,
without deduction for the credit loss allowance).

The Company assesses for evidence of a SICR by considering whether there has been a change in the risk of a default occurring
since the financial instrument was initially recognised.

For TCP, the Company considers a financial asset to have experienced a SICR when any of the following quantitative or qualitative
criteria have been met.

Quantitative criteria

The Company determines whether the probability of a default (“PD”) occurring has changed between the initial recognition and
the reporting date of a financial instrument. If the change in PD exceeds certain relative and absolute thresholds, the instrument
has experienced a SICR. The assessment of the PD takes into account reasonable and supportable information, including
information about past events, current and future economic conditions.

Qualitative criteria

The Company monitors borrowers that may have become impaired and are considered to have experienced a SICR. The Company
also monitors changes in internal credit risk ratings and delinquency triggers to determine if a borrower has experienced a SICR.

The Company’s TCP portfolio is mostly comprised of large corporate borrowers. For these borrowers, short-term delinquencies
alone are not considered to be a meaningful credit quality indicator as the Company’s experience has shown that other internal
credit quality indicators generally identifies increases in credit risk well before delinquency. As such, the Company has
determined that using the quantitative and qualitative criteria described above are most appropriate for capturing SICR for TCP.

Financial instruments that are in Stage 2 are moved to Stage 1 as described below in the period that the quantitative and
qualitative criteria for a SICR no longer exist.

The approach for determining whether there has been a SICR for Non-TCP portfolios depends on the type of instrument which is
explained in detail in "ECL measurement for Non-TCP Portfolios".

Unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk (Stage 1)

Financial instruments that have not had a SICR since initial recognition are included in Stage 1 unless they are purchased or
originated credit impaired ("POCI"). For Stage 1 instruments, ECL is calculated by considering the probability of default within 12
months after the reporting date on a collective basis and interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset
(that is, without deduction for the credit loss allowance).

ECL measurement for TCP Portfolios
Key Inputs

In broad terms, ECLs for the Company’s TCP portfolios are generally calculated based on the following key inputs:

* Probability of Default (“PD”): The PD model estimates the probability of downgrade and default each quarter. The 12-month
and lifetime PDs represent the probability of default occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the
instrument respectively. The model considers input variables that are region, industry and borrower segment-specific and
considers scenario and borrower-specific information. PDs are determined at a facility-level based on risk ratings and other
characteristics.
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* Exposure at Default (“EAD”): The EAD model predicts gross exposure upon a borrower’s default as a percentage of the total
commitment at the reporting date under a given macroeconomic environment. The model estimates the probability of a
change in the utilisation, and direction and magnitude of the change. Input variables include exposure and utilization at the
reporting date, facility purpose, industry and macro-economic variables (“MEVs”).

¢ Loss Given Default (“LGD”): The LGD model estimates expected losses under given macroeconomic environments on the EAD
given the event of default and, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral and the time
value of money.

The 12-month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD, EAD and LGD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the lifetime PD
instead.

Forward-looking information

ECL estimates are derived from the Company’s historical experience and future forecasted economic conditions. To incorporate
forward-looking information into the ECL calculation, the Company develops forecasted economic scenarios. Each of these
scenarios contains a set of MEVs that reflect forward-looking economic and financial conditions. MEVs include, but are not
limited to FX rates, inflation and GDP per country or country block. MEVs for each scenario are projected over a reasonable and
supportable forecast period of two years. After the forecast period, the losses revert to historical averages over a one-year
transition period.

On a quarterly basis, the economic scenarios are updated and probability weighted. The Company uses judgement to develop
the scenarios and assign probability weightings. The most likely economic scenario in management’s view is the base case which
would generally be expected to be weighted more heavily than the other scenarios.

The PD, LGD and EAD models are designed to forecast the credit quality and performance of a TCP portfolio based on industry,
geography, rating and size of obligors, among other attributes of the portfolio. PD, LGD and EAD models are calibrated based on
historical MEVs and use forecasted macroeconomic scenarios for projecting PD, LGD and EAD values.

Debt Securities
The calculation of the ECL on Debt securities measured at amortised cost depends on the staging of each financial instrument.

ECL calculation

The Company uses the forward looking PD, LGD, and EAD values for each of the scenarios to produce the scenario credit losses.
The modelled ECL estimate is a probability-weighted calculation of the scenario credit losses discounted using the original
effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The modelled ECL results are reviewed by management and adjustments (‘management overlays’) are considered to ensure final
results reflect the Company’s best estimate of ECLs on its exposures. Management overlays are only applied if necessary to
account for significant idiosyncratic risks which are not yet reflected in underlying risk ratings, LGD, exposure profile or scenario
weights used and which are expected to have a high probability of occurrence.

The final ECL estimate and assumptions require significant management judgement and certain assumptions are highly
subjective.

Measurement of ECLs in the Company’s Non-TCP Portfolios

The Company’s approach to measuring ECLs for Non-TCP portfolios depends on the type of asset. The Company has determined
that ECLs on all Non-TCP portfolios are without SICR (i.e. Stage 1) and immaterial due to: the credit quality of the borrower, short-
term nature of the instrument and the existence of collateral.

TREPs

TREPs refer to Repo with Government securities with Clearing Corporation of India Limited acting as Tri-party repo agent. The
TREPs engaged into by the Company are fully collateralized by basket of government securities. However, as guided by RBI, the
company has disclosed TREPs under ""Loans"" in the Balance Sheet and computes ECL on the same.

Receivables

The Company's receivables mainly consists of intercompany receivables. The Company will write-off an intercompany receivable
when it is (i) deemed to be uncollectible or (ii) past due for more than 90 days, whichever occurs first. The Company believes
that the 90 day write-off policy materially limits the intercompany exposure recorded on the balance sheet that may have
collectability concerns and no additional impairment charges are required in this category. The Company has not experienced
any losses on inter-company receivables in the past.
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The Company continues to monitor its Non-TCP portfolios to ensure the described framework is appropriate and its exposure to
credit risk and ECLs on these portfolios are adequately reflected in the allowance for credit losses.

ECL and gross carrying amount reconciliation

The following tables provide an explanation of the change in the loss allowance during the year ended March 31, 2024 by
respective product classes. The tables also set out how significant changes in the gross carrying amount of financial instruments
contributed to the changes in the loss allowance:

Traditional credit products

Loans and advances to corporates at amortised cost

The company has no outstanding TCP loans and advances to corporates at amortised cost for current year and previous year.

Debt securities measured at amortised cost

For the year ended March 31, 2024

ECL Gross carrying amount

stage 1 stage 2 stage 3
12-Month | Lifetime | Lifetime Total stage 1 stage 2 stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL

Particulars

New debt securities
originated or purchased - - - - - - - =
Debt securities
derecognised or repaid

Debt securities at the

beginning of the year - - - 404 19,785 ) i 19,785

283 - - 283 14,304 - - 14,304

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3 - - - - - - = -

121 5,481 5,481
As at March 31, 2024 121 - = s =

For the year ended March 31, 2023

ECL Gross carrying amount
stage 1 stage 2 stage 3

12-Month | Lifetime | Lifetime Total stage 1 stage 2 stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL

Particulars

New debt securities
originated or purchased 404 - - 404 19,785 - - 19,785
Debt securities
derecognised or repaid

Debt securities at the
beginning of the year - = = -

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3 = = = “ = s = =

404 9,785 19,785
As at March 31, 2023 il ) . g 1 . )
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Non-traditional credit products
Non-Traditional Credit Products ("non-TCPs") include all other instruments measured at amortised cost and subject to the
impairment provisions under IND AS. No ECL has been recognised on non-TCPs as explained in “Measurement of ECLs in the
Company’s Non-TCP Portfolios" apart from TREPs as guided by RBI.

Credit risk exposures
The following table provides an analysis of the credit risk exposure for TCP, Non TCP and Debt Securities measured at amortised

cost for which an ECL allowance is recognised or not. The gross balance sheet exposure of financial assets below also represents
the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk on these assets.

. Net balance sheet
Risk .
. exposure held with
Gross Exposures Mitigants
Particulars balance captured Net credit
sheet by market Cash & exposure JPMorgan External
exposure risk security Chase counter
collateral undertakings parties
As at March 31, 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,296 - - 10,296 5,168 5,128
Loans 12,456 12,456 - - - -
IFvastiaHte 400,157 3,94,797 - 5,360 - 5,360
Receivables - Other receivables 164 - - 164 164 -
Other Financial assets 2,563 - - 2,563 - 2,563
As at March 31, 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,238 - - 10,238 6,570 3,668
Loans 58,769 - 58,769 - = =
Investments 330,271 | 3,10,890 - 19,381 -] 19,381
Receivables - Other receivables 103 - - 103 103 -
Other Financial assets 2,571 = - 2,571 = 2,571
Maturity profile
Maturity * As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
5 years or more - -
5 years or less but over 1 year 1693 8,106
1 year or less but over 3 months 3667 9,285
3 months or less - 60,759
Total 5,360 78,150

A Represents principal amount of TREPs including accrued interest thereon and debt securities measured at amortised cost.

Ratings profile as at March 31, 2024

Stages Purchased As at March
. credit- 31,2024
Particulars impaired
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Held at amortised cost (Rating grades - 12- Lifeil Lifeti
AAA/Aaa to BBB-Baa3) month etime tetime Total
ECL ECL
ECL
Gross carrying amount 5,481 - - - 5,481
Impairment loss allowance (121) - - - (121)
Net carrying amount 5,360 - - - 5,360
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Ratings profile as at March 31, 2023

Stages Purchased As at
particyl credit- March 31,
Artieniars impaired 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Held at amortised cost (Rating grades - 12- ifeti ifeti
AAA/Aaa to BBB-Baa3) month Lrietione Litetime Total
ECL ECL
ECL
Gross carrying amount 78,561 - - - 78,561
Impairment Loss allowance (411) - - . (411)
Net carrying amount 78,150 - - - 78,150

Analysis of concentration credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of customers are engaged in similar business activities or activities in the same
geographic region, or when they have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be

similarly affected by changes in economic conditions.

Industry concentration As at As at
March 31, March 31,

2024 2023
Tourism, Hotel and Restaurants ) B
Commercial Real Estate - -
Non-Banking Financial Institutions - -
Infrastructure Finance - -
Others 5,360 78,150
Total 5,360 78,150

g
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37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A Financial instruments by category

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - 10,296 - 10,238
Receivables - Other receivables - 164 - 103
Loans 12,456 - - 58,769
Investments 394,797 5,360 310,890 19,381
Other financial assets - 2,563 - 2,571
Total financial assets 407,253 18,383 310,890 91,062
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 27 - 27

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - 36 - 36
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) - - - 15,174
Other financial liabilities - 1,162 - 709
Total financial liabilities - 1,225 - 15,946

B Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements).

The categories used are as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

* Level 2: directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

« Level 3: inputs which are not based on observable market data.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Investments 322,210 72,587 - 394,797
Loans - 12,456 - 12,456
Total financial assets 322,210 85,043 - 407,253
As at March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Investments 271,009 39,881 - 310,890
Loans - = = =
Total financial assets 271,009 39,881 - 310,890

C Valuation techniques
Investments in debt securities
Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities, some may have embedded derivative characteristics. The company is valuing these instruments based on quotes
available in the active market i.e. price computed based on FIMMDA guidelines, trader marked rates and quotes available from the third party intermediaries (brokers). Debt
securities issued by Government or Financial Institutions are generally Level 1 while bonds issued by Corporates are generally Level 2 unless there is sufficient third party trading data
to justify level 1 classification. If the bond is traded in last 15 days published by FIMMDA, then the same is classified under Level 1 instrument. Level 3 instruments are those where
significant inputs cannot be referenced to observable data.
Change in valuation technique and its application in current period
During the current year, the management of the Company has refined its valuation technique to arrive at fair value of investments portfolio. Apart from price computed based on
FIMMDA guidelines, the management has incrementally considered trader marked rates and quotes available from the third party intermediaries (brokers), as and where available,
to determine the fair value. The lower quote amongst the sources is considered for fair value of the investment.
Loans (measured at FVTPL)
The fair value of the loan is derived by discounting of future interest flows and the repayment of notional. The loan is classified under Level 2 since direct prices are not available in
active market.
Calculation of fair values
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at balance sheet date:
Investments are measured at fair value as at the balance sheet date except pass through certificates which is measured at amortized cost.
All the other financial assets & liabilities are measured at amortised cost and fair value disclosed in Note 37 Part D are for disclosure purposes only. 3 IN
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D Accounting classifications and fair values

The carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and liabilities, measured at amortised cost are as follows:

) Fair value
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taral
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 10,296 10,296 - - 10,296
Investments 5,360 - 5,490 - 5,490
Receivables - Other receivables 164 164 - - 164
Other financial assets 2,563 2,563 - - 2,563
Total financial assets 18,383 13,023 5,490 - 18,513
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 63 63 - - 63
Other financial liabilities 1,162 1,162 - - 1,162
Total financial liabilities 1,225 1,225 - - 1,225
As at March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 10,238 10,238 - - 10,238
Investments 19,381 - 19,844 - 19,844
Receivables - Other receivables 103 103 - - 103
Loans 58,769 58,769 - - 58,769
Other financial assets 2,571 2,571 - - 2,571
Total financial assets 91,062 71,681 19,844 - 91,525
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 63 63 - - 63
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 15,174 15,174 - - 15,174
Other financial liabilities 709 709 - - 709
Total financial liabilities 15,946 15,946 - - 15,946

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value:

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the entity's
financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables

and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions explained in note 37 part C.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months) and for other financial assets and other financial liabilities that are insignificant
in value, the carrying amounts, net of impairment, if any, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments includes cash and cash equivalents, receivables - other
receivables, TREPs, other financial assets, trade payables, borrowings (other than debt securities) and other financial liabilities. Such instruments have been classified as Level 1 on

the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the balance sheet.

The Fair value of investment is estimated using fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques mentioned in note 37 part B and C.

E INCOME & EXPENSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Income and expenses recognised on financial assets and liabilities in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest income
Finance cost
(Reversal of impairment) / Impairment on financial instruments

Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Interest income
Net gains on fair value changes on investments
Net gains on fair value changes on loans

vC2

\

A

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

3,505
986
(290)

24,845
7,206
153

11,401
944
411

13,017
647
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38 CAPITAL

39

(a

(b

-

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in its business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank
of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using the regulations issued by the RBI and has complied in full with the same.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company have assigned the responsibility for oversight and comprehensive management of capital requirements on the
Assets Liability Committee (ALCO). BOD ensures that the Company complies with local regulatory capital requirements and maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and to maximise revenue with optimal capital mix.

The Company manages its capital structure and the risk characteristics of its activities. ALCO periodically reviews the capital requirements as per the business
needs in conjunction with RBI regulations.

Regulatory capital
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tier 1 Capital 427,346 376,783
Tier 2 Capital 121 16,411
Total Capital 427,467 393,194
Risk weighted assets 348,710 175,875
Tier 1 Capital ratio % 122.55 214.23
Total Capital Ratio % 122.59 223.56

Tier 1 capital mainly consists of equity share capital including share premium thereof, free reserves less prepaid expenses and deferred tax assets (net).

16,000,000, 5% cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs 10 each issued at a premium of Rs 90 per share on March 23, 2004 were converted
into 17,241,379 equity shares of Rs. 10 each with the approval of the Board of Directors effective March 21, 2024. The new equity shares were issued at a
premium of Rs. 82.80 per share and accordingly included in Tier | capital in current year (previous year the preference shares were considered in Tier Il capital as
advised by RBI to the Company).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs):

J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. grants the company's employees restricted stock units (RSUs) out of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. shares, from time to time, on a
discretionary basis. These RSUs are awarded at no cost to the recipient upon their grant. Generally, RSUs are granted annually and vest at a rate of 50% after two
years and 50% after three years and are converted into shares of common stock of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. as on the vesting date. In addition, RSUs typically
include full career eligibility provisions, which allow employees to continue to vest upon voluntary termination, subject to post employment and other restrictions
based on age or service related requirements. All RSU awards are subject to forfeiture until vested and contain claw back provisions that may result in
cancellation under certain specified circumstances. RSUs entitle the recipient to receive cash payments equivalent to any dividends paid on the underlying
common stock during the period the RSUs are outstanding.

The company separately recognizes compensation expense for each tranche of each award, net of estimated forfeitures, as if it were a separate award with its
own vesting date. Generally, for each tranche granted, compensation expense is recognized on a straight line basis from the grant date until the vesting date of
the respective tranche, provided that the employees will not become full career eligible during the vesting period. For awards with full career eligibility provisions
and awards granted with no future substantive service requirement, the Company accrues the estimated value of awards expected to be awarded to employees
as on the grant date without giving consideration to the impact of post employment restrictions. For each tranche granted to employees who will become full
career eligible during the vesting period, compensation expense is recognized on a straight line basis from the grant date until the earlier of the employee’s full
career eligibility date or the vesting date of the respective tranche.

RSUs Activity
Compensation expense for RSUs is measured based on the number of units granted multiplied by the stock price at the grant date. Compensation expense for
these awards is recognized in employee benefits expenses. The following table summarizes RSUs activity.

RSUs
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Particiilars Weighted Weighted

;:;rz?r(\;:]:te Number of Shares ;:tzrii?r(\;lr:lz'; Number of Shares

per share (Rs.) per share (Rs.)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,861 3,207 10,761 2,263
Granted during the year 13,759 546 9,991 1,469
Exercised during the year* 11,231 (1,830) 10,948 (1,321)
Cancelled during the year 12,097 (430) - -
Transferred during the year 12,191 35 11,401 796
Outstanding at the end of the year 12,282 1,528 11,861 3,207

*The weighted average share price of RSUs exercised during the year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 12,809 per share (March 31, 2023 was Rs. 10,535 per share)
The total fair value of RSUs that vested during the year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 206 (March 31, 2023 Rs. 145)

The maximum term of RSUs existed at any time during the year ended March 31, 2024 was 4 years (March 31, 2023 4 years). Fair value of RSUs was determined
basis the market value of J.P. Morgan Chase’s common stock on the grant date.

Expenses arising from share based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised in statement of profit or loss as part of employee benefit expenses were as follows:

RairticiilaFs Year ended Year ended —
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 SIES

Restricted stock units 95 57 S/

Total employee share based payment expense 95 57 /
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40 Disclosures in terms of the RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated

October 19, 2023 (as amended from time to time)

Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

As at As at
Items March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
CRAR (%) 122.59 223.56
CRAR —Tier | capital (%) 122.55 214.23

CRAR —Tier |l capital (%)

0.04

9.33

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-Il capital

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

16,000,000, 5% cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs 10 each issued at a premium of Rs 90 per
share on March 23, 2004 were converted into 17,241,379 equity shares of Rs. 10 each with the approval of the Board of
Directors effective March 21, 2024. The new equity shares were issued at a premium of Rs. 82.80 per share and
accordingly included in Tier | capital in current year (previous year the same was considered in Tier Il capital as advised
by RBI to the Company).

ii There were no securitisation, reconstruction, derivative and assignment transactions undertaken by the company during

the current year as well as the previous year.

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

A) DIRECT EXPOSURE

(i) Residential mortgages:
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will
be occupied by the borrower or that is rented

(i) Commercial real estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family

residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or 84,000 -
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and
construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB)
limits
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures
a) Residential . )
b) Commercial Real Estate
B) INDIRECT EXPOSURE
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank
61,851 54,248

(NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
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i@

iv Sectoral Exposure

As at March 31, 2024
Total Exposure Percentage of Gross
(includes on balance - NPAs to total

sheet and off-balance SrossNPAs exposure in that
Category sheet exposure) * sector
1. Industry 72,296 - 0.00%
1.1 Airports 52,342 - 0.00%
1.2 Others 19,954 - 0.00%
2. Service industry 401,342 - 0.00%
2.1 Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 37,425 - 0.00%
2.2 Public Financial Institutions (PFls) 109,793 - 0.00%
2.3 Commercial Real Estate 84,000 - 0.00%
2.4 Others 170,124 - 0.00%
3. Others - - 0.00%
Total 473,638 - 0.00%

As at March 31, 2023
Total Exposure Percentage of Gross
(includes on balance x NPAs to total

sheet and off-balance GNPl exposure in that
Category sheet exposure) * sector
1. Industry 39,736 3,717 9.35%
1.1 Airports 21,753 - 0.00%
1.2 Others 17,983 3,717 20.67%
2. Service industry 215,358 - 0.00%
2.1 Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 49,725 - 0.00%
2.2 Public Financial Institutions (PFls) 18,833 z 0.00%
2.3 Commercial Real Estate 8 & 0.00%
2.4 Others 146,800 - 0.00%
3. Others 58,776 - 0.00%
Total 313,870 3,717 1.18%

* Total exposure doesn't include investment in government securities and treasury bills.
**As the Company measures the investments at fair value through profit and loss, no additional provision is required to
be made on the non-performing investments and hence, GNPA and NNPA are same.

# Refer note 40 (xxvii)

v Investments

Category

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

1) Value of investments
(i) Gross value of investments *#

(a) In India 400,281 335,032
(b) Outside India - -
(ii) Provisions for depreciation (net of appreciation)”

(a) In India (3) (4,357)
(b) Outside India - -
(iii) Net value of investments *#

(a) In India 400,278 330,675
(b) Outside India - -

2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

(net of appreciation)

(i) Opening balance 4,357 2,587
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year 3 4,357
(i) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year (4,357) (2,587)
(iv) Closing balance 3 4,357

* Represents principal amount of Investments including accrued interest thereon and unamortised fee.

# Refer note 40 (xxvii)
A Provision for depreciation does not include ECL allowance.

vi The Company did not have any exposure to Capital Market as at March 31, 2024 (as at March 31, 2023 - Nil)
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vii Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

Year ended March 31, 2024

One Month
1 Over2 6
ldayto7 | 8daysto 14 | 15 days to 30 Over ver Over3 Over Over 1 year | Over 3 years
davs da dayE month to 2 | months upto | months upto | months upto i5te:3 vears | uBts Sivears Over 5 years Total
v e Y months 3 months 6 months 1year P Y P Y
Loans* - - 44 - - - - - 12,412 - 12,456
Investments* 35,000 35,000 80,000 150,000 71,284 11,985 2,473 1,693 - 12,721 400,157
Year ended March 31, 2023
One month
Over1 Over 2 3 Over 6
ldayto7 | 8daysto14 | 15 days to 30 ver ver Over ve Over 1 year | Over 3 years
dave davs davs month to 2 | months upto | months upto | months upto t0 3 vears 105 vears Over 5 years Total
¥ ¥ ¥ months 3 months 6 months 1year up v up v
Loans* 58,769 - - - - - - - - - 58,769
Investments* 35,000 35,000 80,000 142,177 1,208 6,410 5,831 8,106 3,782 12,757 330,271

* Loans represent principal amount (net of provisions) of Term loan/ TREPs including accrued interest thereon; Investments includes principal amount (net of ECL / unrealised gains (losses))
including accrued interest thereon and unamortised fee.
Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as used by the Company for compiling the Asset Liability
management return submitted to the Reserve Bank of India.

viii Provisions and Contingencies in statement of profit and loss

=

Yearended | Year ended

Provisions March 31, March 31,

2024 2023
Fair value (gains) / losses on investments (Refer note 24) (4,354) 1,770
Provision for tax expenses (Refer note 31) 8,227 5,475
(Reversal of provision) / Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 19) (3) 7
(Reversal of impairment) / Impairment on financial instruments (Refer note 27) (290) 411
Concentration of Advances

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,

2024 2023
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers* 12,456 58,769
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the
NBFC 100% 100%

* Advances represent principal amount of Term loans and TREPs including accrued interest thereon

x The Company had no non performing investments as of March 31, 2024. There was a non performing investment of Rs.

2023. There were no non performing advances during the current year and previous year [Refer note 40 (xxvii)].

3,782 (including interest on investment of Rs. 82) as of March 31,
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Xi Concentration of non-performing assets (NPAs) {non performing investments}

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Total Exposure of top four NPA accounts* - 3,717
*Refer note 40 (xxvii)
xii There were no non-performing financial assets purchased/sold during the current year as well as the previous year.
xiii Movement of NPAs (non performing investments)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023

(i) Net NPAs to Net Investments (%) - 1.13%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross) *#

(a) Opening balance 3,782 5,602

(b) Additions during the year - -

(c) Reductions during the year (3,782) (1,820)

(d) Closing balance - 3,782
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs *#

(a) Opening balance 3,782 5,602

(b) Additions during the year - -

(c) Reductions during the year (3,782) (1,820)

(d) Closing balance - 3,782

(iv)

Movement of provisions for NPAs *#

(a) Opening balance

(b) Provisions made during the year

(C) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions

(d) Closing balance

*As the Company measures the investments at fair value through profit and loss, no additional provision is required to be made
on the non-performing investments and hence, GNPA and NNPA are same. Non-performing investments includes accrued
interest thereon and liquidity reserves.

# Refer note 40 (xxvii)

xiv Concentration of Exposures

Exposures of the NBFC on borrowers/ customers

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Total E to twenty largest bo t *
otal Exposure to y larg rrowers/ customers 472,768 313,870
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to Total
99.82% 100.00%

* Total exposure doesn't include investment in government securities and treasury bills.

xv  The Company is not registered with any other regulator other than the Reserve Bank of India.

xvi No penalties were imposed by the regulator during the current year as well as previous year.
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xvii A comparison between provisions required under income recognition, asset classification and provisioning (IRACP) and impairment allowances
made under Ind AS 109 as on March 31, 2024 in accordance with "Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards" RBI/2019-20/170,DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.10 9/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.

As at March 31, 2024

Loss
AlsseFf i Gross Carrying A;Iowapces Net € i Prov!5|odns Difference between Ind AS
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms cassification Amount  as ( TOYIS'onS) as|e arrying| require 31109 provisions and IRACP
as per Ind AS o ind AS required Amount per IRACP -
109 P under Ind AS norms
109
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 17,784 (121) 17,663 (71) (50)
Stage 2 - - = P "
Subtotal 17,784 (121) 17,663 (71) (50)
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard [Stage 3 - - z B >
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 = - = o &
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - _
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Sub-total for Doubtful - - - - -
Loss [Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA
Stage 1 : B i )
Other items such as guarantees, Stage 2 A &
loan commitments, etc. which are in - - -
the scope of Ind AS 109 but not - -
Stage 3
covered under current IRACP norms - ~ -
Subtotal » s - . N
Stage 1 17,784 (121) 17,663 (71) (50)
Stage 2 - - B - -
Total
Stage 3 - - - - -
Total 17,784 (121) 17,663 (71) (50)
As at March 31, 2023
Loss
AlsseFr . Gross Carrying A;Iow_a.nces Net G ) PrOV{smdns Difference between Ind AS
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classincation Amount as ( ro\_nsmns) as|he arrying|require - 109 provisions and IRACP
as per Ind AS er Ind AS required Amount per IRACP P
109 P under Ind AS norms
109
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 78,561 (411) 78,150 (314) 97)
Stage 2 - - - - -
Subtotal 78,561 (411) 78,150 (314) (97)
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - 5 "
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Sub-total for Doubtful - 3 : . -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - =
Subtotal for NPA
Stage 1 - °
Other items such as guarantees, S ) = .
loan commitments, etc. which are in tage = - -
the scope of Ind AS 109 but not e -
Stage 3
covered under current IRACP norms - - =
Subtotal
Stage 1 78,561 (411) 78,150 (314) (97)
Stage 2 - - - - _
Total
Stage 3 - - = < <
Total 78,561 (411) 78,150 (314) (97)

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has also created provision of 0.40% amounting to Rs.99 (March 31, 2023 - Rs 50) on
outstanding unquoted investments and term loan.

= I
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Disclosures in terms of the RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 (as
amended from time to time)

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) - Not Applicable (As at March 31, 2023 - Not
Applicable)

(i) Top 20 large deposits - Not Applicable (As at March 31, 2023 - Not Applicable)
(iii) Top 10 borrowings - Not Applicable (As at March 31, 2023 - Not Applicable)
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product - Not Applicable (As at March 31, 2023 - Not Applicable)
(v) Stock Ratios:
(a) Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets - Not Applicable (As at March 31, 2023 - Not Applicable)

(b) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets - Not
Applicable (As at March 31, 2023 - Not Applicable)

(c) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1) Other short-term liabilities as % total public Funds Not Applicable Not Applicable
2) Other short-term liabilities as % total liabilities * 55.43% 94.13%
3) Other short-term liabilities as % total Assets 0.29% 3.99%

Other short term liabilities includes interest accrued but not due.

*Total liabilities excludes Networth
(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has delegated oversight of liquidity risk to RMC. As governed by RMC Terms of Reference, where required, matters will be
escalated from RMC to the Board of Directors or Asia Pacific Risk Committee.

The Liquidity Risk Management (LRM) group is an Independent Risk Management function, reporting to the CTC Chief Risk Officer (CRO) who also serves as the
Firmwide Risk Executive of Liquidity Risk. LRM is responsible for the independent assessment, measuring, monitoring, and control of liquidity risk across the firm.
Their responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

1) Defining, monitoring, and reporting liquidity risk metrics

2) Independently establishing and monitoring limits and indicators, including liquidity Risk Appetite

3) Developing a process to classify, monitor and report limit breaches

4) Performing independent review of liquidity risk management processes

5) Monitoring and reporting internal firmwide and LE stress tests, and regulatory defined stress testing
6) Approving or escalating for review new or updated liquidity stress assumptions

7) Monitoring and reporting liquidity positions, balance sheet variances, and funding activities

Concentration of credit/ investment norms does not apply to the company vide the RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated
October 19, 2023 (as amended from time to time)

There were no customer complaints received during the current year as well as previous year.

There were no Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during the current year as well as during the previous
year.

Since the Company does not have any subsidiary, Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) is not applicable.

The disclosure pertaining to financing of parent company products is not applicable as the Company does not finance any parent company products.
During the current as well as previous year, the Company has not postponed revenue recognition on account of pending uncertainties.

During the current and previous year, the Company has not made any drawdown of reserves.

The Company does not have any overseas joint venture / subsidiary.

The Company has investments in Hazaribagh Ranchi Expressway Limited (HREL) bonds which were non performing investments in the books of the Company as of March 31, 2023.
Post receipt of the approvals from NCLT, SEBI, NHAI and completion of all formalities including execution of MTA between Parties (HREL, Debenture Trustee and InVIT), JPMSI has
received interest payment (including accrued interest from April 01, 2021 to December 15, 2022) of Rs. 1,224 and Principal prepayment of Rs. 1,517 in February 2023 and
accordingly these investments were classified as restructured.

Post receipt of above stated funds, HREL has made timely payments due in period ending March 31, 2024 i.e. April 2023 and October 2023. Further, with serving regular interest,
HREL has met the conditions specified by the RBI for asset class upgrade and accordingly HREL was upgraded to standard asset w.e.f February 2024.

These investments are carried at FVTPL and are fair valued in the current year and previous year and no NPI provision is created.

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency.
The Company's foreign currency exposure results primarily from movements of the Indian Rupee (Rs.) against the US Dollar (USD). The Company does not have significant foreign
exchange exposure and accordingly the impact of changes in foreign currency rate is considered insignificant given the nature and size of business.

However, company has unhedged foreign current exposure of Rs. 565 in reporting year and Rs. 589 in previous year.

Disclosure of ratios as per schedule Ill of companies Act, 2013:
Particulars Reference
(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) %  [Refer note 38 of financial statement
(b) Tier 1 CRAR Refer note 38 of financial statement
(c) Tier 2 CRAR Refer note 38 of financial statement

As per RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 (as

d) Liquidi Ratio (LCR
(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) amended from time to time), the entity is not require to maintain LCR.
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DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of the accounting year. = = #
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and - #
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year. = = #
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which i
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the - °
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006. N #
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. - - #
- #
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until _ _ #

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Act, 2006.

The above information regarding Micro and Small enterprises has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Income tax demands disputed by the Company as at March 31, 2024 Rs.818 (March 31, 2023 Rs. 818)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no material events subsequent to March 31, 2024 and up until the adoption of the financial statements by the Board of Directors,
unless otherwise disclosed in these financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES
The company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023
Information in  accordance with the requirements of paragraph 31 of RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106
DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 (as amended from time to time) is given in Annexure I.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period for the company.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to Schedule 11l in current and previous year:
a) Details of benami property held

b) Wilful defaulter

c) Utilisation of borrowed funds & share premium

d) Undisclosed income

e) Valuation of PPE, intangible asset and investment property

f) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

PREVIOUS YEAR COMPARATIVES

Previous year amounts have been reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current year's classification.

# Represents amounts below rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

For K.S. Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number : 100186W

Partner
Membership No. 38526

Naquiyah Aga
Whole-time Director
DIN: 09243454
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

KLSBRee

Ketki Bhogle
Company Secretary
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Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date :

June 07, 2024 Date : June 07, 2024
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ANNEXURE | FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2024

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 31 of RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 (as amended from time to

time)

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Liabilities Side
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Amount Amount Amount Amount
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue
(1) [Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
(a) Debentures : Secured - - - -
: Unsecured - - - -
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits : . = &
(c) Term Loans - - - -
(d) Intercorporate loans and borrowing @ = = =
(e) Commercial Paper - = = =
(f) Public Deposits = _ - B
(g) Other Loans - Liability component of compound financial instruments - - 15,174 -
Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not
@ paid) :
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - - - -
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of
security - - - -
(c) Other public deposits - = - -
Asset Side
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Amount Amount
Outstanding Outstanding
(3) |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured * 12,259 58,776
(b) Unsecured - -
(4) |[Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease - -
(b) Operating lease - -
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire - =
(b) Repossessed Assets - -
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b) Loans other than (a) above - =
(5) |Break-up of Investments :
Current investments:
1. Quoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds * 306,226 143,941
(iii) Units of Mutual funds - N
(iv) Government Securities * - 72,623
(v) Others (certificate of deposits) 65,372 83,287
2. Unquoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity - -
(b) Preference B =
(i) Debentures and Bonds 12,410 12,410
(iii) Units of Mutual funds B =
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others (Commercial Papers) « «
Long Term investments
1. Quoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity 3 <
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds B e
(iii) Units of Mutual funds - N
(iv) Government Securities - =
(v) Others (please specify) = =
2. Unquoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity = 2
(b) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and Bonds - =
(iii) Units of Mutual funds _ _
—_(iv) Government Securities - -
VA (v):Others (Pass through certificates) 19,757

* Represents principal value of TREPs & investments
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 31 of RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 (as amended from time to

time)

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(6) |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above: (Refer note 1 below)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Category — —
Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries - - - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - - - - -
('c) Other related parties - - - - - -
2. Other than related parties * 12,456 - 12,456 58,769 - 58,769
Total 12,456 - 12,456 58,769 - 58,769

* Represents principal value of loan (secured by SBLC) & TREPs

(7) |Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Category Book Value Book Value
Market Value (Net of Market Value (Net of
Provisions) Provisions)
1. Related Parties**

(a) Subsidiaries - - - -

(b) Companies in the same group - - - -

(c) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties * 389,352 389,355 327,257 331,614
Total 389,352 389,355 327,257 331,614

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI

A Excludes interest on Investments

(8) |Other Information

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Amount Amount

(i) |Gross Non Performing Assets*#
(a) Related Parties - -
(b) Other than related parties - 3,782
(i) |Net Non-Performing Assets*
(a) Related Parties - -
(b) Other than related parties - 3,782
(iii) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

*As the Company measures the investments at fair value through profit and loss, no additional provision is required to be made on the non-performing investments and hence,
GNPA and NNPA are same.
# Refer note 40 (xxvii)

Note:
1. As defined in paragraph 5.1.26 of RBI master directions RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 (as amended from time to time)




